8-29-2013

## Haas v. State Appellant's Brief Dckt. 40998

## ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

Argument 1 The appellant was denied effective counsel at trial, appeals and post-conviction under US Supreme Court *Martinez v Ryan* 6th Amendment claims

Argument 2 Did counsel forgo post-conviction to reduce sentence which was not reduced knowing the Commission would not release Appellant upon completion of his fix sentence? 5th and 6th Amendment claims.

Argument 3 Trial counsel failed to file a timely appeal when instructed to and court records show's petitioner informed his counsel to file a timely appeal

Argument 4 Trial counsel was told by petitioner to take plea agreement and failed to take it, saying "We'll win this case?" And counsel guaranteed 'he'd win to "sit down and shut up." 6th Amend.

Argument 5 Court went beyond recommended sentence by prosecutor and the court gave appellant a very harsh sentence given the victim was almost 18 years old, which is cruel and unusual punishment under the 8th Amendment.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

### A. Introduction

### B. Statement of Facts and Course of Proceedings

On July 13, 2012, petitioner filed his petition and affidavit for Post Conviction Relief under the United State ~~Supreme~~ Court Martinez vs Ryan 132 Supreme Court 1309 (2012). claiming counsel advised petitioner to forego post-conviction and received a reduction of sentence and still doing a hard sentence. (Knowing the Parole Commission rarely grants parole). and appeals counsel not addressing issues on appeal to the Court of Appeals. That trial court was ineffective for not taking the plea agreement (told to "shot up and sit down," given the highly prejudicial case when dealing with any type of sex crime). That the court went beyond the recommended sentence by prosecutor in a plea agreement of 3 years fixed + 10 years indeterminate sentence, given the court reduced fixed sentence, where the Commission would never reduce the indeterminate sentence and used this reduction as a ruse to forego post-conviction relief. Counsel for petitioner said he wasn't paid enough to pursue post-conviction relief or address the misgiving.

on January 25, 2013 the state filed a motion for Summary Dismissal claiming barred by the one-year statute of Limitation, No affidavit was filed.

on February 1, 2013, the district court judge filed an order Granting permission to proceed without payment of Court fees, but denied petitioner counsel saying "A court may dismiss a petition on its own initiative based on untimeliness if there is no material fact." Then dismisses the case as untimely with addressing the issues (FACTS if not disputed are true).

on February 27, 2013, the petitioner filed a Reply Motion Opposing Dismissal that the "Post-convictions were filed in a timely manner and given (ineffective) counsel on them, and got play in his Rule 35 if dismissed post-conviction where the settlement came with consequences in that the court took time off the fixed portion, possibly knowing the Commission would not grant relief on the indeterminate end... Only initial post-convictions have to be filed in a timely manner, successive petitions have to have merit. (This case has merit). And the state had a chance to address the merits claimed herein. And Submitted (which so far Idaho hasn't or wants to address) the United States Supreme Court under *Martinez vs Ryan* 132 S Ct 1309 (2012), who "noticed the plight of inmates not getting their cases heard on their merits. That not only must be granted counsel but must be granted effective counsel in post conviction proceedings. And counsel's deficit performance to get time lowered on the fix portion of sentence but not get relief knowing the Commission does not, as in this case, give any time off the indeterminate sentence on a sexual battery of a 17 year old (almost 18 by statute). And counsel's deficit performance at trial to perform an appeal on the "life" sentence... where there is not a rape, violence, threats or even intercourse... previous proceedings... Attorneys hired by the state to "Sweep this under the rug" ... long sentences of 25 years which

are usually given to those who commit murder... like this case where there was no rape, violence, injury, threats or even intercourse are given "life". And the court under Martinez, supra the petition like Martinez, filed a successive petition for post-conviction relief and got his case heard on the merits, including <sup>here</sup> counsel not taking a deal when appellant knew you don't need corroboration, witnesses, dates or DNA to convict and juries would side with caution and convict an innocent person if there's a chance, even a slim chance he might be guilty.

on March 12, 2013 The state responded without addressing the merits in an documents with no page numbers (2 pages) says am barred for not raising issues in original, supplemental or amended complaints wouldn't that have been counsel's job? And now argues res judicata?

on April 1, 2013 The appellant filed a Sur-Reply, that the state "in their answer makes cursory defenses without addressing the issues. That unless denied, addressed or argued by the respondent the claims herein must be considered true." Again explained Martinez, supra was not given counsel or given effective counsel at trial, appeals, post-conviction and Rule 33 Hearings. Saying prisoners are all-equipped to deal with Constitutional claims and rely on Counsel who if they don't effectively adjudicate the prisoner's claims are barred from addressing the issues"... Which is shown in their brief Answer and even briefer Reply... "don't take time to even argue res judicata or how US Supreme Court in Martinez, supra doesn't apply. And listed issues of merit on how Martinez, supra doesn't apply.

Now the court goes to bat for the respondents' brief 2 page Motion for Summary Dismissal and 2 page un-numbered respondents Response to Petitioner's Reply and Motion Opposing Summary Dismissal in a 5 page order ~~DISMISSING~~ <sup>DISMISSING</sup> Petition for Post-Conviction Relief filed April 10, 2013. And the court did ~~analyze~~ (2) two issues and tries to dismiss appellant's argument as moot. When this court wanted to dismiss the petition without waiting for a reply from the state, And says "this court <sup>HAS</sup> the power to dismiss frivolous post-conviction petitions without any action from the state. And without addressing the issues says "argument to the contrary is without merit." And says "Heas's argument is now moot in that the state filed a response." Why doesn't this court want to address this argument? And says "Heas has not provided a sufficient reason why his ineffective assistance of counsel claims were (pick one or the other) not asserted or inadequately raised in his his first two petitions." Case in point admittedly 'inadequately raised in his first two petitions.' First argues but don't apply appellant's argument of statute of limitation. But goes into say correctly "why ~~his~~ claims of ineffective assistance of counsel were not adequately raised in either of his earlier petitions. And says a "result of Heas's failure to explain (goes to ineffective counsel and here no counsel) a justification for his successive claims." And that's where ~~the~~ United States Martinez v Ryan, SUPA comes in.

## ARGUMENT 1

A. Introduction The appellant was denied effective counsel at trial, appeals and post-conviction under US Supreme Court *Martinez v Ryan*, supra 6th Amendment claims

B. Argument The district court dismisses this petition saying the appellant has not provided a sufficient reason why his ineffective assistance claims were not asserted or inadequately raised. And will address this case like the US Supreme Court under *Martinez vs Ryan*, which so far this court has not addressed. Even in a recent decision by the court in *Sanchez vs Idaho*, Docket # 40579 - 2013 avoids discussing *Martinez v Ryan*. were it says "A prisoner's inability to present a claim of trial error is of particular concern when the claim is one of ineffective assistance of counsel. The right to the effective assistance of counsel is a bedrock principle in our justice system... the right to counsel is the foundation of our adversary system... the defendant requires the guiding hand of counsel at every step in the proceedings against him... thus, there are sound reasons for deferring consideration of ineffective - assistance - of - trial - counsel outside the direct appeal process... (cause of actions, claims and issues) are "under-taken without counsel or effective counsel." And like *MARTINEZ*, who had filed 2 post-convictions given counsel that were not effective.



## Argument 2

A. Introduction: Did counsel forego post conviction to reduce sentence, which was not reduced knowing the Commission would not release Appellant upon completion of his fix sentence? 5<sup>th</sup> and 6<sup>th</sup> Amendment chies.

B. Argument: September 17, 1999 petitioner filed a Rule 35 after filing a petition for post-conviction Relief on August 22, 2001 and counsel had petitioner dismiss the post-conviction if the court took 2 years off his fixed sentence. which was a ruse to get petitioner to forego the numerous issues knowing the Commission never releases those charged or convicted of sex crimes upon finishing fixed sentences, then would time bar his post-conviction. which shows it not for counsel's ineffectiveness in this ruse with the district court to forego his post-conviction issues under Grist or Es trade involving an allegation of sexual misconduct with a child should be treated differently than any other type of case is no longer controlling authority. And was promised relief by counsel, which if the parole commission had released and granted parole upon finishing his fixed sentence then there would be no problem, but once the petitioner was not even considered for parole then no relief was granted by the court and promised by counsel. Olivia Craven and the parole commission are known for not releasing any one on their fixed sentences. Now 7 years later part his fix sentence proves there was no reduction at sentence and the courts know this and should have reduced indeterminate time.

### Argument 3

A. Introduction: Trial Counsel failed to file a timely appeal when instructed to and court records shows petitioner informed his counsel to file a timely Appeal. 6<sup>th</sup> Amendment.

B. Argument: Trial Counsel failed to file a timely Appeal dealing with issues at trial including when the court sent jury out where the prosecutor offered a 3 Fixed 10 year indeterminate plea deal, besides other issues. And the court record reflects this, yet ignores this issue when this court says in a memorandum decision on petition for post-conviction relief CV-10-1109 on April 18, 2011 says at page 9 "(1) that even though Mr. Heas made a timely request for appeal." Such an appeal was never filed to argue Estrada §43 Idaho 558 and Gust 147 Idaho 49. And "filed an Inmate Request Form (hereinafter 'kite'), wherein he expressly indicated his desire to exercise his right to appeal." Now when the trial court admits this and now says its an issue without merit actually shows Trials counsel was not only ineffective in this issue but in other issues presented. Now if the petitioner had not proven his attempts to get this appealed in a timely manner then this court would not believe him, But now that he proves this its saying "has not provided a sufficient reason... were not asserted or inadequately raised in his first two Petitions." Why? Ineffective Counsel for not when directed (was a court record) to file a timely Appeal.

#### Argument 4

A. Trial counsel was told by petitioner to take plea agreement and failed to take it, saying "Will win this case?" And counsel guaranteed he'd win to "sit down and shut up" 6<sup>th</sup> Amendment

B. Courts, attorneys and those charged with a sex crime know its easy to convict even innocent persons of sex crimes. The courts allow the prosecutors to line bad acts / allegations never charged with to say "he touched me" you don't need corroboration, witnesses or even a date. Any year will do. There's even a person who proved his innocence on a state instituted polygraph examination and the courts ignore this. So when the prosecutor offered a plea, where the judge took a recess to take up the prosecutor's offer, where they offered a 3 Fixed 10 year indeterminate. But counsel refused the offer. And the public defendant told the (Appellant)-defendant to sit down and shut up that he was going to win this case. And like argument (number 3) sent a letter of his mental condition, emotional state and asking counsel to get this over with. And asked the court for help against his attorney. And the court later based on this found cause / merit for ineffective assistance of counsel, but only offered time off on the Rule 35 if will dismiss his post-conviction, then found out (not part of the negotiations) the court took 2 years off the fixed knowing this means nothing to the Parole Commission. So like argument #3, the court record shows this letter sent to the judge and court to show continue ineffective counsel.

## ARGUMENT 5

A. Court went beyond recommended sentence by prosecutor and the court gave appellant a very harsh sentence given the victim was almost 18 years old, which is cruel and unusual punishment under the 8th Amendment.

B. Before 1992, 16 years olds were considered legal age of consent. And Males and Females under 19 years old can be charged as adults for crimes. After 1992, anyone having any type of sexual contact, whether inappropriate sexual contact, intercourse or rape are all considered the same. You can get life! The punishments do not fit the crimes. In one instance (see more) guys plead guilty to their first criminal charge of Level Conduct and get 5 life without parole. Before the Unified Sentencing act the only people doing over 20 years had to kill somebody when Idaho's prison population was less than 1,500. And inappropriate sexual battery got a 25 year sentence. Sexual Battery of a Seventeen year old! Twenty-five years! The court thought he was doing petitioner <sup>a favor</sup> to stop bringing issues to post-conviction relief by taking a couple fixed years off the fix. And counsel was ineffective in coaxing the petitioner to drop his post-conviction which leads to successive post-convictions with successive ineffective counsels. And a harsh sentence.

~~sent~~