10-31-2013

## Haas v. State Respondent's Brief Dckt. 40998

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

### Nature of the Case

James Timothy Haas appeals from the district court's denial of his third petition for post-conviction relief.

### Statement of Facts and Course of Proceedings

A jury found Haas guilty of sexual battery of a minor child. (R., pp. 70-72.) The district court sentenced Haas to a unified 25-year sentence with nine years fixed. (R., p. 71.) Haas filed an Inmate Request form expressing his desire to appeal, and requesting assistance to do so. (R., p. 107.) Although this was forwarded to the Kootenai County Public Defender's Office, no appeal was filed. (R., p. 108.) Thereafter, Haas filed a Rule 35 motion, and later a (first) petition for post-conviction relief; the same counsel was appointed to represent Haas in both matters. (R., p. 108.)

The parties filed a stipulation in settlement of post-conviction relief, which included an agreement that Haas' Rule 35 motion would be determined on its merits following a hearing. (R., p. 108.) Based on the stipulation, the district court entered a conditional order dismissing Haas' post-conviction matter.<sup>1</sup> (R., p. 108.) Following the hearing on Haas' Rule 35 motion, the district court amended Haas' sentence to a unified term of 25 years with seven years fixed. (R., p. 109.)

---

<sup>1</sup> The conditional order indicated that a final order dismissing Haas' first petition would be entered upon entry of the court's decision on Haas' Rule 35 motion. (R., pp. 108-09.) However, no final order was filed. (R., p. 109.)

Haas filed a second petition for post-conviction relief seven years later, asserting two claims: (1) that he received ineffective assistance of counsel because no appeal was filed on his behalf despite his timely request; and (2) that he was entitled to relief under two Idaho Supreme Court cases decided since his first post-conviction petition. (R., pp. 107, 113.) Counsel from Haas' first petition and Rule 35 motion was reappointed to represent him. (R., p. 109.) The district court conducted an evidentiary hearing and accepted additional briefing. (R., p. 110.) Thereafter, the district court entered a memorandum decision and order dismissing the petition. (R., pp. 107-19.)

In its order of dismissal, the district court addressed I.C. § 19-4908, which bars successive petitions absent a sufficient reason for adequately asserting claims in the original petition. (R., pp. 113, 119.) The district court found that Haas failed to demonstrate why his claims were inadequately raised in his first petition. (R., p. 119.) Noting that Haas stipulated to dismiss his first post-conviction petition, the district court also seemed to find that Haas waived his claim that counsel was ineffective for failing to appeal, to the extent such claim was raised therein. (R., pp.114-16.) In addition, the district court found that the cases relied on by Haas in his second post-conviction petition, which were decided after Haas was sentenced, did not apply retroactively or were otherwise inapplicable. (R., pp. 117-119.) Haas did not appeal.

Fifteen months later, Haas filed his third petition for post-conviction relief pro se. (R., pp. 4-14.) The petition asserted ineffective assistance of counsel claims concerning counsel's performances at trial, in failing to appeal, and in

relation to Haas' Rule 35 motion and initial post-conviction petition. (R., p. 5.) The district court issued a notice of intent to dismiss the petition as untimely, and gave Haas 40 days to respond. (R., pp. 64-68.) Haas responded, arguing that there is no time limitation for successive petitions, and that his ineffective assistance of counsel claims must be heard on their merits under Martinez v. Ryan, 132 S.Ct. 1309 (2012). (R., pp. 74-76.) The state replied, asserting the petition should be dismissed as barred under I.C. § 19-4908, and as res judicata. (R., pp. 77-78.) In a sur-reply, Haas again cited Martinez and attacked the state's reply as inadequate. (R., pp. 92-94.)

The district court entered an order dismissing Haas' third petition because Haas failed to provide a sufficient reason justifying a successive petition under I.C. § 19-4908, and entered a separate judgment. (R., pp. 97-101, 126.) Haas timely appealed. (R., pp. 121-26.)

## ISSUES

Haas states the issues on appeal as:

- (1) The appellant was denied effective counsel at trial, appeals and post-conviction under US Supreme Court *Martinez v Ryan* 6th Amendment Claims
- (2) Did counsel forgo post-conviction to reduce sentence which was not reduced knowing the commission would not release Appellant upon completion of his fix sentence? 5th and 6th Amendment claims.
- (3) Trial counsel failed to file a timely appeal when instructed to and court records show's petitioner informed his counsel to file a timely appeal
- (4) Trial counsel was told by petitioner to take plea agreement and failed to take it, saying "We'll win this case?" And counsel guaranteed he'd win to "sit down and shut up." 6th Amend.
- (5) Court went beyond recommended sentence by prosecutor and the court gave appellant a very harsh sentence given the victim was almost 18 years old, which is cruel and unusual punishment under the 8th Amendment.

(Appellant's brief, p. 2 (verbatim).)

The state rephrases the issue as:

Has Haas failed to show the district court erred in summarily dismissing Haas' third petition for post-conviction relief?

## ARGUMENT

### Haas Has Failed To Show The District Court Erred In Summarily Dismissing Haas' Third Petition For Post-Conviction Relief

#### A. Introduction

Haas' third petition for post-conviction relief claimed ineffective assistance by trial counsel, for (1) proceeding to trial rather than pursuing a plea agreement, and (2) failing to appeal after trial. (R., p. 5.) Haas also claimed ineffective assistance by counsel for his Rule 35 motion and first post-conviction petition for settling his first post-conviction petition case without achieving a further reduction in his sentence. (R., p. 5.) The district court dismissed Haas' petition, concluding that Haas failed to explain "why his claims of ineffective assistance of counsel were inadequately raised in either of his earlier petitions." (R., p. 100.) Haas does not address the district court's basis for its dismissal. Instead, Haas argues the substance of his third petition's underlying claims and adds an additional claim. (Appellant's brief, pp. 2, 7-12; see R., p. 5.)

Haas has failed to challenge the basis for the district court's dismissal, to show that consideration of his new claim is warranted, or to justify his 15-month delay in filing his third petition. Accordingly, this Court should affirm the district court's order summarily dismissing the petition.

#### B. Standard Of Review

"On review of a dismissal of a post-conviction relief application without an evidentiary hearing, this Court will determine whether a genuine issue of material fact exists based on the pleadings, depositions and admissions together with any affidavits on file." Workman v. State, 144 Idaho 518, 523, 164 P.3d 798, 803

(2007) (citing Gilpin-Grubb v. State, 138 Idaho 76, 80, 57 P.3d 787, 791 (2002)).

“Where the alleged facts, even if true, would not entitle the applicant to relief, the trial court may dismiss the application without holding an evidentiary hearing.”

Charboneau v. State, 144 Idaho 900, 903, 174 P.3d 870, 873 (2008) (citations omitted).

C. Haas Failed To Demonstrate Sufficient Reason Why He Did Not Assert Or Inadequately Raised His Third Petition's Claims In Prior Petitions

The district court dismissed Haas' third petition as an improper successive petition because Haas failed to provide sufficient reason for failing to assert his claims previously. (R., pp. 97-101.) All grounds for relief must be raised in a petitioner's "original, supplemental or amended application." I.C. § 19-4908. "Any ground finally adjudicated or not so raised, or knowingly, voluntarily and intelligently waived . . . may not be the basis for a subsequent application" unless the district court finds sufficient reason why the claim "was not asserted or was inadequately raised in the original, supplemental, or amended application." I.C. § 19-4908. Haas was on notice of this ground for dismissal in the state's reply. (R., p. 78.) However, Haas did not address I.C. § 19-4908, either in his sur-reply to the district court, or in his brief on this appeal. (R., pp. 92-94; see generally Appellant's brief.)

The record does not support that Haas had a sufficient reason for not asserting – or inadequately raising – his third post-conviction petition's claims in his prior petitions. The record shows Haas raised, or attempted to raise, his claim that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to appeal, in his first and second petitions for post-conviction relief. (R., pp. 113-16.) In its order dismissing Haas'

second petition, the district court found that Haas had settled the claim (raised in his initial petition) “in exchange for certain conditions associated with [his] I.C.R. 35 motion,” which the court agreed to dismiss. (R., p. 116.) Haas did not challenge the district court’s determination that counsel’s failure to appeal his underlying criminal matter “was settled.” (R., pp. 108-09, 116.) Upon re-asserting the issue in his third petition, Haas offered no explanation why it was inadequately raised before. (See R., pp. 74-76, 92-94.)

It does not appear from the record that Haas’ prior post-conviction petitions included claims of ineffective assistance by trial counsel for not pursuing a plea agreement, or ineffective assistance by post-conviction counsel for settling his initial post-conviction petition. (See R., pp. 107-10.) Haas asserts no reason why he failed to raise those claims – adequately or not – in his prior petitions. (See Appellant’s brief.) Despite that the district court based its dismissal of Haas’ successive petition on I.C. § 19-4908, Haas did not address the provision at all. Rather, Haas argued that dismissal would be improper under Martinez v. Ryan, 132 S.Ct. 1309 (2012). (R., pp. 74-76, 92-94.)

On appeal, Haas again fails to address I.C. § 19-4908. Instead, he again cites Martinez. (See Appellant’s brief, pp. 3-7.) Haas’ reliance on Martinez is misplaced. The Court in Martinez held that a federal habeas court may excuse the procedural default of an ineffective assistance of trial counsel claim where post-conviction counsel was ineffective in pursuing the claim in state post-conviction proceedings. Id. at 1320. Haas’ matter is not now before a federal habeas court, thus Martinez does not apply. Also, and significantly, Haas did not

allege specific facts or arguments that he received ineffective assistance by counsel for his second petition. (R., pp. 75-76, 92-94.)

In Hernandez v. State, 133 Idaho 794, 992 P.2d 789 (Ct. App. 1999), the Court held that under I.C. § 19-4908, a claim of ineffective assistance by post-conviction counsel, “if true, provides sufficient reason for permitting newly asserted allegations” as well as claims inadequately raised in the prior post-conviction petition. Id. at 798, 992 P.2d at 793 (citing Palmer v. Dermitt, 102 Idaho 591, 635 P.2d 955 (1981)). Hernandez identified specific facts that his post-conviction counsel knew and should have raised, but did not, and which he claimed resulted in the summary dismissal of his prior petition. Hernandez, 133 Idaho at 798-99, 992 P.2d at 793-94. In other words, Hernandez “alleged facts which, if proven, would constitute sufficient reason under I.C. § 19-4908 for the allowance of a successive application.” Id. at 799, 992 P.2d at 794. Haas did not. (R., pp. 74-76, 92-94.)

Haas argued he received ineffective assistance by trial counsel for proceeding to trial and not pursuing a plea agreement, then not pursuing an appeal. (R, pp. 75, 93.) Haas also argued he received ineffective assistance by counsel for his Rule 35 motion by failing to get the indeterminate part of his sentence reduced, thus foregoing his first petition. (R., pp. 75, 93.). However, Haas did not argue or allege facts to support a claim that he received ineffective assistance by counsel for his second post-conviction petition. Accordingly, Haas failed to meet his burden of demonstrating a sufficient reason to avoid dismissal under I.C. § 19-4908.

D. Haas Failed To Preserve A Claim That His Sentence Was Excessive

With respect to Haas' contention on appeal that the district court imposed an excessive sentence, this claim was never raised to the district court, and cannot be raised for the first time on appeal. (Appellant's brief, pp. 2, 11.) Dunlap v. State, 141 Idaho 50, 58, 106 P.3d 376, 384 (2005). Moreover, such a claim is not the proper subject of a post-conviction petition, but is a claim that must be raised on direct appeal. I.C. § 19-4901(b). Although the state recognizes that Haas has asserted ineffective assistance of counsel for failing to file an appeal, only that claim may be properly adjudicated in post-conviction, not the substantive claim Haas would have raised on appeal if an appeal had been filed.

E. Even If Haas Could Overcome The Successive Petition Bar In I.C. § 19-4908, His Second Successive Petition Is Untimely

Even if Haas had asserted a sufficient reason to overcome the bar to successive petitions under I.C. § 19-4908, his petition should nevertheless be deemed untimely under the circumstances.<sup>2</sup> The Idaho Supreme Court discussed a "reasonable time standard" for a successive petition under I.C. § 19-4908, in Charboneau, 144 Idaho 900, 174 P.3d 870. In that case, the Court

---

<sup>2</sup> Although the district court ultimately dismissed Haas' third post-conviction petition for failure to allege sufficient grounds for relief, it had initially provided notice of intent to dismiss the petition as untimely. (R., pp. 64-68.) Thus, Haas had notice and an opportunity to respond and establish why his petition should be deemed timely; Haas' only response was that there is no time limit for filing successive petitions (R., pp. 74-76), an argument that ignores I.C. § 19-4908, and is therefore contrary to law.

held, “there should be a reasonable time within which [claims based on newly discovered evidence] are asserted in a successive post-conviction petition, once those claims are known.” Id. at 905, 174 P.3d at 875. “In determining what a reasonable time is for filing a successive petition, we will simply consider it on a case-by-case basis.” Id. The Charboneau Court found that the delay of 13 months after Charboneau’s awareness of new evidence, and before filing his successive petition, was “simply too long a period of time to be reasonable.” Id.

The Court of Appeals addressed the reasonableness of a year-long delay in filing a successive petition, in Schwartz v. State, 145 Idaho 186, 177 P.3d 400 (Ct. App. 2008). In that case, the Court agreed with the holding in Charboneau that, determining the reasonable time for filing a successive petition is considered “on a case-by-case basis.” Id. at 190, 177 P.3d at 404. In Schwartz, the Court found that the almost-12 months that Schwartz waited after being denied an extension to file a post-conviction petition, until she filed her petition alleging ineffective assistance, was too long. Id. at 191, 177 P.3d at 403.

Haas’ second petition was dismissed on April 18, 2011, following evidentiary proceedings regarding the district court’s jurisdiction to consider the petition. (R., pp. 107-19.) If Haas had any issues that were not raised, or inadequately raised, by counsel in his second petition, he was on notice of such deficiencies as of that date. Haas does not contend otherwise. Nonetheless, Haas did not file his third petition for post-conviction relief until 15 months later, on July 18, 2012. (R., p. 4.)

In light of Charboneau and Schwartz, Haas' delay of 15 months before filing his third petition is unreasonable. Haas has provided no reason why he did not file his third petition, or adequately assert the third petition's claims earlier. Accordingly, Haas has failed to show his petition was timely. This Court must therefore affirm the district court's order summarily dismissing Haas' petition.

CONCLUSION

The state respectfully requests that this Court affirm the district court's order dismissing Haas' third petition for post-conviction relief.